
ADDENDUM #2 

ITB/RFP NUMBER:  2023005-CM-P  

Architectural & Engineering Services RFP 

DATE:  August 11, 2022 

TO:  All Potential Bidders/Offerors 

City of Harrisonburg’s RFP, is modified as follows: 

On August 8, 2022 at 2:00pm local time a mandatory pre-bid meeting was held for the above-referenced 

solicitation. Attached and made part of this addendum is the sign-in sheet from this meeting. Below are highlights, 

clarifications and questions and answers from the pre-bid meeting and thereafter. 

Highlights & Clarifications 

• Attached and made part of this addendum is the most recent survey of the property.

• Vision for the property is to become a permanent location for low-barrier shelter in our community,

beyond just a place to sleep, and becoming a centralized services hub.  The City has a general idea of the

space that is needed but are still in discussion about what specific services would be located on-site.  The

vision also includes future development of the property to maximize the space and create a campus of

sorts.

• It is very high priority to open the sleeping quarters, showers, and bathrooms as soon as possible, but not

later than November 1, 2023. To meet this need, the City desires for construction of these three elements

to be completed as quickly as possible.

• Please be reminded in Section 5.0 the City requests each Offeror provide information on their current

workload.  Because the timeline is tight, the City needs an Offeror that is able to focus on this project.

• The house is not on the historic registry, but it is the City’s intent to keep the building.

• There is a restrictive covenant on a portion of the property which is attached and made part of this

addendum.  The prohibition on living quarters, sleeping apartments, or lodging rooms was removed from

the restrictive covenant on June 24th, 2022, but all other prohibitions remain in effect for the restricted

segment of the property.

Questions & Answers 

1. Question:  What does the procurement look like for the construction?

Answer:  The City plans to issue one sealed solicitation (Invitation to Bid) for both phases of the project.

Due to the complexity of the project and renovation work, we decided it may not be a good fit for Design-

Build.

2. Question:  Will the first phase (dwelling priority) be the new construction?

Answer:  Yes, it is likely this will be the new construction and the current space would most likely be used

for kitchen, offices, services, etc.

3. Question:  What is the budget for the project?

Answer:  Per Code of Virginia 2.2-4342 B, the City will not be providing a cost estimate for this project.
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4. Question:  What is the presumed square footage for the new construction? 

 

Answer:  The space needs to be adequate enough to sleep 100 people not in bunk beds.  The CDC 

recommends 6 feet physical distancing guideline to limit the spread of communicable diseases, which we 

would like to keep in place for the design.  While it is up to the design firms to determine the best utilization 

of space, it should be noted that 10,000+ square footage will need a site plan review which could add time 

to the project.  Should that occur, the City will work diligently to help expedite the plan review as much 

as possible. 

 

5. Question:  Will family units or units for mother with children be needed? 

 

Answer:  No – the City has 2 other organizations in the community that currently provide services for 

these needs. 

 

6. Question:  When the facility is complete, will the services be run by the City or contracted out? 

 

Answer:  Contracted out. 

 

7. Question:  Are other wrap-around services a priority to complete by November 1, 2023? 

 

Answer:  No, currently the shelter sleeps 60 guests nightly so there should be flexible space in the new 

construction to allow space in the interim to provide services. 

 

8. Question:  Will construction documents be 2-phased? 

 

Answer:  That will be up to the design firms.  The living space MUST be completed by November 1, 

2023, along with he connection to the existing facility.  Ideally the kitchen and eating area would also be 

completed; however, we are open to allowing more time for this.  The City is open to other ideas but 

would ideally prefer both phases of the project to be designed together and bid out for construction 

together. 

 

9. Question:  Will the property need to be rezoned? 

 

Answer:  No. 

 

10. Question:  Is there asbestos on the property? 

 

Answer:  The Assistant Director of Public Works is currently reviewing the asbestos report.  Should there 

be asbestos on the property, the City will separately contract out for the abatement services. 

 

11. Question:  Are there any as-built plans of the space? 

 

Answer:  No. 

 

12. Question:  Are there any municipal services to the facility? 

 

Answer:  Yes – water and sewer are confirmed.  This is the only utility information we have at this time. 

 

13. Question:  Is all funding from the City? 
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Answer:  Yes, but a portion is federally funded (see attachment J – updated in Addendum #1). 

 

14. Question:  What are the number of service providers for now who would be in this space? 

 

Answer:  Maybe 2 for now with permanent offices on-site but the City is actively working through those 

details.  There may be interest from numerous service providers for meeting space but not permanent 

office space (i.e. JMU Suitcase Clinic). 

 

15. Question:  Will the food preparation area need to be a commercial kitchen? 

 

Answer:  No.  It needs to be a step above a residential kitchen but more like a light commercial (similar 

to a Fire Department).  More than a warming kitchen. 

 

16. Question:  Will the City bid out the construction or use a prequalified pool of contractors? 

 

Answer:  The City will issue an Invitation to Bid for the construction and is not considering a 

prequalification process at this time. 

 

17. Question:  Is the City willing to split this into 2 projects or consider a Design-Build approach wherein the 

design could be progressive?  This would let interested design firms handle other obligations, especially 

for the prioritized portion to be completed by November 1, 2023. 

 

Answer:  The City is not interested in splitting this into two projects.  A phased approach will be 

considered, although it is preferred that the entire design be completed at once, rather than progressively.  

Due to the renovation component, we determined Design-Build would not be the best approach. 

 

18. Question:  Where is the boiler located? 

 

Answer:  It was previously located in the basement, but it has been removed.  The piping is still intact, but 

we anticipate this being removed during the demo phase. 

 

19. Question:  Does the City desire to fix the basement to get rid of the water problems during construction?   

 

Answer:  If it is determined that the basement has a current water issue then our approach would be to 

correct during construction/renovation. 

 

20. Question:  Will the City issue an environmental performance standard minimum? Energy use intensity 

 

Answer:  The City would like to achieve LEED v4.1 for Building Design and Construction (BD+C): Silver 

on the addition if possible.  Offerors should include information on their experience with LEED certified 

projects as well as examples in their proposal response under Tab 2 (Section 5.0 of the RFP).   

 

21. Question:  RE: Tab 3 Requirements, page 5 - Are there any stipulations on the projects that will be listed 

as part of Tab 3 requirement, “12 month workload of projects?” Would you prefer to see line-item data 

for each active task order or should those be included as part of the ongoing IDIQ/contract? 

 

Answer:  We would prefer to see what team would work on this project and the workload related to that 

specific team. We want to feel comfortable that this project will be a priority and get the attention it needs 

in order to meet the strict timeline we have outlined.  Please provide adequate documentation relating to 

the firm’s current workload to include, at a minimum, project size, number of staff assigned to project and 

approximate hours anticipated to be dedicated to each project. 
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22. Question:  RE: Tab 3 Requirements, page 5 - Should the members of our consultant team also include this 

information or does this requirement apply only to the Prime contract holder submitting the proposal? 

 

Answer:   This information will only apply to the Prime contract holder submitting the proposal. 

 

23. Question:  RE: Tab 6 Required Forms - Attachment H does not appear to have been included in the RFP, 

will this be made available? 

 

Answer:  This document was intentionally removed; however the attachment numbers were not updated 

to reflect the removal.  Please disregard the inclusion of this form in the proposal response under Tab 6.   

 

24. Question:  Since this project includes Federal funds, will a State or Federal entity be reviewing the 

drawings?  Or will the plan review be only by the City of Harrisonburg? 

 

Answer:   Only the City of Harrisonburg will be involved in plan review. 

 

25. Question:  Would an FFE list be provided by the City Staff/Shelter Director, and Service Providers? 

 

Answer:  Yes, the City of Harrisonburg will develop and provide a FFE list. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All other requirements, terms and conditions of the ITB/RFP remain unchanged.  

 

Addendum page must be signed and returned with your bid/proposal to acknowledge receipt of this addendum. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Authorized Signature 

 

 

By:  Shane B. Smith 

        Procurement Manager 

City of Harrisonburg, VA - Architectural & Engineering Services RFP (2023005-CM-P) Addendum #2 Page 4 of 16



City of Harrisonburg, VA - Architectural & Engineering Services RFP (2023005-CM-P) Addendum #2 Page 5 of 16



City of Harrisonburg, VA - Architectural & Engineering Services RFP (2023005-CM-P) Addendum #2 Page 6 of 16



City of Harrisonburg, VA - Architectural & Engineering Services RFP (2023005-CM-P) Addendum #2 Page 7 of 16



City of Harrisonburg, VA - Architectural & Engineering Services RFP (2023005-CM-P) Addendum #2 Page 8 of 16



City of Harrisonburg, VA - Architectural & Engineering Services RFP (2023005-CM-P) Addendum #2 Page 9 of 16



City of Harrisonburg, VA - Architectural & Engineering Services RFP (2023005-CM-P) Addendum #2 Page 10 of 16



NAME
Project 2

LOCATION
1111 N Main Street
22802 Harrisonburg
VA

DETAILS
Total area: 6544.47 sq ft
Living area: 6544.47 sq ft
Floors: 2
Rooms: 12

THIS FLOORPLAN IS PROVIDED WITHOUT
WARRANTY OF ANY KIND. LEE & ASSOCIATES
DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, SATISFACTORY QUALITY
OR ACCURACY OF DIMENSIONS. THIS FLOOR
PLAN IS FOR EXAMPLE LAUOUT ONLY AND
SHOULD NOT BE USED FOR EXACT
MEASUREMENTS.

▼ Ground Floor TOTAL AREA: 4819.62 sq ft • LIVING AREA: 4819.62 sq ft • ROOMS: 6

Staircas
e

Conference
932.70 sq ft (30' 1 3/4" × 30' 11 1/4")

Kitchen
552.69 sq ft (21' 7 1/2" × 28' 1 3/4")

Hallway
111.03 sq ft

14' 11 3/4" × 12' 11 1/4"

Library
870.43 sq ft (42' 10" × 26' 6 1/2")

Closet
221.26 sq ft

16' 7 3/4" × 13' 3 1/2"

Bathroom
136.70 sq ft

16' 6 3/4" × 12' 11 1/4"

Bathroom
96.75 sq ft

10' 8 1/2" × 11' 4"

Hallway
262.20 sq ft (44' 8 1/2" × 8' 11 3/4")

Office
197.91 sq ft

14' 1" × 14' 3/4"

Office
243.49 sq ft

16' 5 1/4" × 14' 9 3/4"

Study
89.18 sq ft

9' 7" × 9' 3 3/4"

Closet
95.28 sq ft

Study
210.19 sq ft

14' 9 3/4" × 19' 1 1/2"

Closet
46.03 sq ft

Study
274.13 sq ft (19' 6" × 14' 3/4")
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NAME
Project 2

LOCATION
1111 N Main Street
22802 Harrisonburg
VA

DETAILS
Total area: 6544.47 sq ft
Living area: 6544.47 sq ft
Floors: 2
Rooms: 12

THIS FLOORPLAN IS PROVIDED WITHOUT
WARRANTY OF ANY KIND. LEE & ASSOCIATES
DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, SATISFACTORY QUALITY
OR ACCURACY OF DIMENSIONS. THIS FLOOR
PLAN IS FOR EXAMPLE LAUOUT ONLY AND
SHOULD NOT BE USED FOR EXACT
MEASUREMENTS.

▼ 2nd Floor TOTAL AREA: 1724.85 sq ft • LIVING AREA: 1724.85 sq ft • ROOMS: 6

Staircase

Staircase

Hallway
131.98 sq ft (24' 5 3/4" × 14' 7 1/4")

Office
265.14 sq ft (12' 4 1/2" × 24' 1 3/4")

Office
159.27 sq ft (14' 3 1/2" × 11' 1 3/4")

Bathroom
51.61 sq ft

6' 4 1/2" × 8' 1"

Office
253.65 sq ft (13' 3 3/4" × 19' 1/2")

Study
131.63 sq ft (13' 3 3/4" × 10' 9")

Office
216.11 sq ft (14' 1 1/4" × 15' 4")

Bathroom
81.33 sq ft

6' 3 1/4" × 15' 4 1/4"

Office
167.02 sq ft (10' 10 1/4" × 15' 4 1/2")
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NAME
Project 2

LOCATION
1111 N Main Street
22802 Harrisonburg
VA

DETAILS
Floors: 2
Rooms: 12

THIS FLOORPLAN IS PROVIDED WITHOUT
WARRANTY OF ANY KIND. LEE & ASSOCIATES
DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, SATISFACTORY QUALITY
OR ACCURACY OF DIMENSIONS. THIS FLOOR
PLAN IS FOR EXAMPLE LAUOUT ONLY AND
SHOULD NOT BE USED FOR EXACT
MEASUREMENTS.

▼ Ground Floor ROOMS: 6

Staircas
e

Conference

Kitchen

Hallway

Library

Closet

Bathroom

Bathroom

Hallway

Office

Office

Study

Closet

Study

Closet

Study
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NAME
Project 2

LOCATION
1111 N Main Street
22802 Harrisonburg
VA

DETAILS
Floors: 2
Rooms: 12

THIS FLOORPLAN IS PROVIDED WITHOUT
WARRANTY OF ANY KIND. LEE & ASSOCIATES
DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, SATISFACTORY QUALITY
OR ACCURACY OF DIMENSIONS. THIS FLOOR
PLAN IS FOR EXAMPLE LAUOUT ONLY AND
SHOULD NOT BE USED FOR EXACT
MEASUREMENTS.

▼ 2nd Floor ROOMS: 6

Staircase

Staircase

Hallway

Office

Office
Bathroom

Office

Study

Office

Bathroom

Office
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